
 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
February 23, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of February 2, 2015 
b) Approval of games of chance for the St. John the Baptist Parish Bazaar on June 19, 2015, 

June 20, 2015, and June 21, 2015 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
Committee Reports 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Financial Update 
(b) Recognition of Sergeant Jonathan O’Connor for receiving the Act of Bravery Award 
(c) Update on Frank Wood Bridge Project 
(d) Update on the NNEPRA Stormwater Management Permit process 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
15. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to Chapter 11 “Marine 

Activities, Structures and Ways” relative to a Harbor Ordinance and mooring 
requirements, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor 
Walker)   

HEARING/ACTION 
 
16. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to Chapter 12, “Personnel 

Ordinance” to clarify language regarding vacation time accumulation and use, and will 
take any appropriate action. (Manager)  

HEARING/ACTION 
 

1 
 



NEW BUSINESS 
 
17. The Town Council will consider submitting a letter to the Maine Department of 

Environmental Protection expressing the Town of Brunswick’s interest in identifying 
funding for a watershed plan for Mare Brook, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Councilor Walker) 

ACTION 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT 

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 
  

2 
 



Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

February 23, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of February 2, 2015:  A copy of the draft minutes is included in 
your packet. 

 
b) Approval of games of chance for the St. John the Baptist Parish Bazaar on June 19, 2015, 

June 20, 2015, and June 21, 2015:  This is the annual request from this group, which 
would allow games of chance at the Bazaar.  The games include the pan game, high 
roller, beat the house, and sealed tickets.  A copy of their application is included in your 
packet. 

 
The Council always has the option to remove any item from the Consent Agenda to be 
considered separately. 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE UPDATES 
 
Council Committee updates will be done after correspondence.  Councilors with information on 
the Committees they are involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Financial Update: Manager Eldridge will update the Council on the Town’s financial picture 

to date for the current fiscal year.  Copies of financial reports will be posted online, but are 
not included in your packet. 

 
(b) Recognition of Sergeant Jonathan O’Connor for receiving the Act of Bravery Award:  This 

item recognizes the lifesaving measures Sergeant O’Connor took with a drowning woman 
last August.  He was nominated for, and received this award, from the Maine Chiefs of 
Police Association.  A copy of the article from the Bangor Daily News is included in your 
packet. 

 
(c) Update on the Frank Wood Bridge Project:  This item is to provide the Council an update on 

the options for this bridge and remind the public of the February 25th public hearing. 
 
(d) Update on the NNEPRA Stormwater Management Permit process:  This item is to update the 

public and Council on this process.  A copy of a letter from Maine Department of 
Environmental Protection (MDEP) is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  There are no motions required for the Manager’s Report. 
 

3 
 



PUBLIC HEARING 
 
15. This item is the required public hearing on amendments to Chapter 11 “Marine Activities, 

Structures and Ways” relative to a Harbor Management Ordinance and mooring 
requirements.  The amendments, sponsored by Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor 
Walker, contain the recommended ordinance language from the Rivers and Coastal 
Waters Committee.  Copies of a memo from the Commission, the draft language, and a 
memo from the Town Attorney regarding the status of the proposed amendments are 
included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt amendments to Chapter 11 “Marine Activities, Structures and Ways” 
relative to a Harbor Ordinance and mooring requirements. 

 
16. This item is the required public hearing for amendments to Chapter 12, “Personnel 

Ordinance” to clarify language regarding vacation time accumulation and use.  The 
proposed amendment to the Personnel Policy will require that exceeding the maximum 
allowable accrued balance can only be accomplished with a written request and written 
approval. Under the proposed amendment, the authorization to exceed the maximum 
shall expire the following year unless another exception is requested and approved in 
writing. The amendment also makes it clear that compliance with the policy will be 
measured each June 30th. The measurement date is consistent with the Town’s past 
practice.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge, the proposal language, and sample 
exception form are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt amendments to Chapter 12, “Personnel Ordinance” to clarify language 
regarding vacation time accumulation and use. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
17. This item is sponsored by Councilor Walker.  Recently Councilor Walker has been in 

contact with MDEP staff regarding the anticipated 2015 availability of funding to 
complete a watershed plan for Mare Brook.  MDEP is very interested in working within 
the Mare Brook watershed and hopes to kick off field studies (using Department funds) 
this spring.  Brunswick will then be asked to participate in a grant process this summer 
with the potential of securing funds to complete a 2-year watershed planning process.  At 
this time, the Council is being asked to submit a letter to MDEP expressing the Town’s 
interest in identifying funding for a watershed plan.  MDEP is willing to begin field work 
for the project this spring using Department funding with the assurance that the town has 
an interest in pursuing formal grant opportunities in the summer of 2015.  Submitting a 
letter at this time does not commit the town to a match requirement, or to filing any 
specific grant application.  Those actions would come before the Council for a 
subsequent vote later this summer.  Copies of a memo from Councilor Walker, along 
with supporting reports, are included in your packet. 

 

4 
 



Suggested motion: 
Motion to submit a letter to Maine Department of Environmental Protection expressing 
the Town of Brunswick’s interest in identifying funding for a watershed plan for Mare 
Brook. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 
 

5 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
February 9, 2015 

(POSTPONED from February 2, 2015) 
Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, John M. Perreault, Daniel E. 

Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, and John 
Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: Councilor Suzan Wilson 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant 

to the Town Manager; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; John Foster, 
Public Works Director; Julie Henze, Finance Director; Mark Waltz, Police 
Commander; Marc Hagan, Police Commander; Dan Devereaux, Marine 
Warden; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
To move the Consent Agenda after the Manager’s Report 
To add a report from the Town Auditors to the Manager’s Report 
 
Public Comments (This item was discussed at 7:04 p.m.) 
 
Bernie Breitbart, 38 Cumberland Street, spoke in support of the train and support for the 
building of the layover facility in the proposed location.   
 
Correspondence 
 
None 
 
Committee Reports (This item was discussed at 7:06 p.m.) 
 
Chair Brayman made appointments to the TIF committee as follows: Councilor Watson, 
Councilor Perreault, and Councilor Harris.  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 

a) Reminder of Council workshop with the Conservation Commission on February 5th  
 
This item was not discussed since the workshop had already occurred. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
February 9, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

b) Municipal Budget development  (This item was discussed at 7:08 p.m.)  
 
Mr. Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 

c) Storm recap (This item was discussed at 7:09 p.m.) 
 
Mr. Eldridge provided this update and thanked the Public Works and Recreation staff for their 
hard work. 
 

d) (ADDED) Auditor’s Report (This item was discussed at 7:12 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
Tim Gill, Auditor from Runyon Kersteen Ouellette, provided this report, and responded to a 
question from Councilor Perreault. 
 
Chair Brayman and Councilor Richardson spoke regarding this item. 
 

e) (ADDED) Public hearing for options for the Frank Wood Bridge  (This item was 
discussed at 7:26 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
10. The Town Council will hear public comments on an amendment to Chapter 15 of 

the Code of Ordinances (Traffic and Vehicles) to restrict overnight parking on a 
section of Page Street between the hours of 1:00 A.M. and 6:00 A.M. to parking by 
residential permit, with the amendment to be adopted on an emergency and regular 
basis, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor Millett)  (This item was 
discussed at 7:31 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
Commander Mark Waltz spoke regarding this item. 
 
The following members of the public made comments: 
Steve Perkinson, 6 Page Street 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
February 9, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

MAIN MOTION 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Harris seconded, to adopt an amendment to Chapter 
15 of the Code of Ordinances (Traffic and Vehicles) to restrict overnight parking on a 
section of Page Street (between Maine Street and Union Street) between the hours of 1:00 
A.M. and 6:00 A.M. to parking by residential permit, with the ordinance to be adopted on 
an emergency and regular basis.   
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Millett, Councilor Harris, Councilor Walker, Councilor K. 
Wilson, Councilor Richardson, and Chair Brayman spoke regarding this item.   
 
Manager Eldridge and Commander Waltz responded to a question from Councilor Harris. 
 
AMENDMENT TO MOTION 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to amend the motion to have the 
Police Department report back to the Council in January 2016.  The motion carried with 
eight (8) yeas.  
 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION AS AMENDED 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Harris seconded, to adopt an amendment to Chapter 
15 of the Code of Ordinances (Traffic and Vehicles) to restrict overnight parking on a 
section of Page Street (between Maine Street and Union Street) between the hours of 1:00 
A.M. and 6:00 A.M. to parking by residential permit, and to have the Police Department 
report back to the Council in January 2016, with the ordinance to be adopted on an 
emergency and regular basis.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of adopted amendments will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
11. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for February 23, 2015, on 

amendments to Chapter 11 “Marine Activities, Structures and Ways” relative to a 
Harbor Ordinance and mooring requirements, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Walker)  (This item was discussed at 8:15 p.m.) 

 
MOTION 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to set a public hearing for February 
23, 2015, on amendments to Chapter 11 “Marine Activities, Structures and Ways” relative 
to a Harbor Ordinance and mooring requirements.   
 
Public input 
 
Joe Caruso, Collinsbrook Lane, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault and Councilor Richardson asked questions, to which Officer Devereaux 
responded. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
February 9, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

Councilor Harris asked questions, to which Officer Devereaux and Councilor Walker responded.   
 
Councilor Walker also spoke on this item. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to set a public hearing for February 
23, 2015, on amendments to Chapter 11 “Marine Activities, Structures and Ways” relative 
to a Harbor Ordinance and mooring requirements.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  
 
12. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for February 23, 2015, for 

amendments to Chapter 12, “Personnel Ordinance” to clarify language regarding 
vacation time accumulation and use, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) (This item was discussed at 8:34 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
MOTION 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to set a public hearing for 
February 23, 2015, for amendments to Chapter 12, “Personnel Ordinance” to clarify 
language regarding vacation time accumulation and use.   
 
Councilor Harris, Councilor Richardson, and Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to set a public hearing for 
February 23, 2015, for amendments to Chapter 12, “Personnel Ordinance” to clarify 
language regarding vacation time accumulation and use.  The motion carried with eight (8) 
yeas. 
 
13. The Town Council will consider adopting the “Resolution to Authorize the Town 

Council Chair to Take Actions Necessary to Complete the Settlement and 
Recommitment of the Balance Due on the Outstanding Tax Lists,” and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 8:41 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
MOTION AND VOTE 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt the “Resolution to 
Authorize the Town Council Chair to Take Actions Necessary to Complete the Settlement 
and Recommitment of the Balance Due on the Outstanding Tax Lists.”  The motion carried 
with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
14. The Town Council will consider changes to the Council Rules of Order and 

Procedure relative to the order of agenda items, expanding the consent agenda, and 



Town Council Minutes 
February 9, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 
 

outlining public hearing procedures, and will take any appropriate action.  
(Manager)  (This item was discussed at 8:43 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
MOTION 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt changes to the Council 
Rules of Order and Procedure relative to the order of agenda items, expanding the consent 
agenda, and public hearing procedures.   
 
Councilor Richardson and Councilor Perreault spoke regarding this item. 
 
AMENDMENT TO MOTION 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to have the Consent Agenda as 
item 6 in the item order.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION AS AMENDED 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt changes to the Council 
Rules of Order and Procedure relative to the order of agenda items, expanding the consent 
agenda, and public hearing procedures, as amended with the Consent Agenda as item 6.  
The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Council rule amendments will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  (This item was discussed at 7:28 p.m.) 

a) Approval of the Minutes of January 20, 2015  
b) Approval of the historical society request for overnight use of the mall for 

Chamberlain Days  
c) Authorization to accept and expend funds in the form of Maine Bureau of Highway 

Safety reimbursements for Police Department equipment   
 
Councilor Perreault wanted to remove CA-C to be considered separately. 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda 
Items A and B.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
Commander Hagan spoke regarding the CA-C, and responded to a question from Councilor 
Harris. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to approve Consent Agenda item 
C.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  
 
(A copy of the CA-C back-up will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Executive Session: Property Acquisition [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] 
 



Town Council Minutes 
February 9, 2015 
Page 6 
 

 
 

Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to go into executive session to discuss 
Property Acquisition per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C).  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to come out of executive session.  
The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 

 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adjourn the meeting. The motion 
carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:33 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
February 17, 2015 
 

February 23, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 







 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
IN COUNCIL PACKETS 
BUT ON LINE 
 
 



 
 
 

02/01/2015 15:27    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |JANUARY 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   36,189,094  36,189,094  36,465,881.43          28.60                   -276,787.43  100.8%*
111190 41102  Prev Years Supplement            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000     -13,220.07        -230.16                    -61,779.93   17.6% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       75,000      75,000      32,227.43       3,374.58                     42,772.57   43.0%*
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       12,000      12,000      14,352.69         991.20                     -2,352.69  119.6%*
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev       12,000      12,000      17,999.85            .00                     -5,999.85  150.0%*
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      150,000     150,000      95,900.30            .00                     54,099.70   63.9%*
111190 41197  BETE reimbursement      157,895     157,895     413,635.00            .00                   -255,740.00  262.0%*
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r      427,247     427,247     321,993.00            .00                    105,254.00   75.4%*
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj        3,343       3,343            .00            .00                      3,343.00     .0%*
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,825,000   2,825,000   1,701,314.97     213,652.49                  1,123,685.03   60.2%*
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000       3,900.15         509.80                     21,099.85   15.6%*
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane        4,000       4,000            .00            .00                      4,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Taxes                        39,605,579  39,605,579  39,053,984.75     218,326.51                    551,594.25   98.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   39,605,579  39,605,579  39,053,984.75     218,326.51                    551,594.25

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        8,000       8,000       7,700.00       1,600.00                        300.00   96.3%*
121111 42208  Postage Fees            0           0          39.98            .00                        -39.98  100.0%*
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        2,000       2,000       1,668.00            .00                        332.00   83.4%*
121411 42100  Building Permits      132,500     132,500     106,616.47       2,686.10                     25,883.53   80.5%*
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       31,000      31,000      23,758.95       1,935.12                      7,241.05   76.6%*
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       20,500      20,500      13,147.50         862.50                      7,352.50   64.1%*
121411 42103  Zoning Board Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42104  CEO Reinspections            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42105  Mobile Home Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42106  Institutional Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42107  Alts/Adds Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42108  Comm/Indus Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42109  Multiple Dwellings            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42110  Accessory Structures            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,300       1,300         589.75         115.00                        710.25   45.4%*
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,502       2,502       2,134.00         962.00                        368.00   85.3%*
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       45,000      45,000      31,994.00       4,042.60                     13,006.00   71.1%*
121611 42203  General Licenses       24,250      24,250       6,627.50       1,752.50                     17,622.50   27.3%*

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Y2PM5/NfhvCCj0qrsKcYtLWySZpIoE%2BAmhQKp4cFUPDv0Ym8CNgHT7ynhWNgP8N8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=EExAL5GT6YHfSz%2B3hgmnxz4eeCPPjJAqbwyPABgKaKB%2BbBKWCAOyzqmUe3Jtu7Zw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=i35WuPq0ylrt%2B3nEqFPuwn7DiWuJ3cZknc1hXBUTbVXTkrCfypJ3tsd%2BZDai8fRO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ha6NbDmbpFPk1/KBgtbOecAoVmqxeYaKbxSYsYFydzFMW2Bp1bDKJLB7NrEwPZg5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=w9feHcF8oUjDSduD/tWpF91PVfQmvFkJZ9bBlMDwKUVYGT8oZosNODxWEHKGLig6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4TKOYtjCh8OuPapfWRiG%2BD479%2B0ttHkIBtNY1f4FSOkvmMZPO3lkh8nxxNV5/3OK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ubl60/BhSgIoD9R%2BQDxO2d0rwjiXDqkL9oyT093xg/KXAF/nlXmCE9VNVwsx/8tA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=COjrxzq8HdeSVyYdw%2BR8t0EjIRykG9eO821CCU74KBXwbGsRcnAz9cFFXQ97udAj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=W/eURvae3WUK5SyNAIYKcoJlmVemS1aBMoDy0sPDc5n25eWaNwyWNajoIuXzEQxV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MRl2/VhwU6JlTwldBkvLJZxgJ8DvBB5Tzevwa4CGAaXFAN5Ft%2Bl4pvk0%2BYlhARTr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kV9Fxpix/ZfYVjUxdCezyUIUG/XeSCNl0DYtmOVr5vpbw9zgRPhp%2BX0%2BXI%2BIVEcW&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Vgk6GYI5Wecz0Ny4lMKkL9LB%2B0dlGyZGmwDimL5E2HNo0goxBlBYuKoQ3wrbmb21&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2%2BD4ku5aPYtO%2BO7agnWfxNyXtXbX0XYkBLCceM11KiGtbHZNsIE0l5GXJAzP2vej&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hiFKN/EVTlgO2yXLZpfBpsyMBwF1zriKtxyGS1P7pR2/OW1EhBPDDwedQTDJk2mi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xZqlD6UgYaX3iH4h7WPhREiTk4lSwO0NtJ/0k2BDRoBtolISilIuYXoMLDsbct1S&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=w6n8e/KhcLvoqz757VNzFRsBnzA3ImeNXnQlO/N7JECuiN/B/XGA2P0MhXqio7Ey&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0GKytLrdLxXipqr7N3jbaaNk3yUzbByCnDAf2hvV5DeZOyN2%2BaCuJJLx5RZg1vAJ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ThIeJJpIM7mk62rj%2Bxdj95wYzw7PE4yQEuQ5YhlnOKjrsnwaok2g2hZHwGDHV9K9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pDDhTNBrAJP2q3Lr/GiYRpCbCU87qWtJ/kiL9BKwJ6XUsyBAKQjt2e3d0KV71EnU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XVDe2Zzwmxztmar3IqNXGpaho6UYXNOXBTMsKMTUXFb2nNRLqiLxXgLhJM9/4YnF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fOmwBgRvFTNkZGbrh6whh5%2BGchjn3BRgGXWWRZwl4CzMGHJPF%2BCrVKesCxZvIGpS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BAOPV6bhA4Jo4QD3vxeVyPrc2E8wlugi5YvA9jkC2aVz25BToIiUOY88g3Hq20Cq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PqfJOaS5CtqyBD/LEkJjdgjfOlGL3htidFQYJwi7rKiHmAuTkExJEu2OHX8ZAGeb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2YRBu6DCdt7osHc/E43qDFmx7dDERkN6AERQo65XQ5ZJLQaMR7mKVHfvU6X0NRoR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KSR3P/VAqWq%2ByM8hSEAfwUG9cyIQvmec%2B8Sopj789Hd9O5ABY8lF9GFjVTlnHnyN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UT1N6kdSvHz/ihelNkPmnotfqUgNxQ4sQGSCLWESqm1GTZITTT/hkj2W1zfNDU2a&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7DePqJf%2B1EOAHa0TOyPuFuZLBVdR11ruOk2%2BJZqWaVoVdM8FV/3Q1PykipZ34pyG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OgkUrOO4wjcQdu%2BOy8qAovNoGVKqUjT1ROZBsJAaf1l%2BdiB7vXC1DMA/DhD8qXeK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=J6YmbZ5tvF3WnWrDXbw2hUjYDxRzmkTeMuxse2%2B9e4fYBxduiFDdG5D%2BUwWRgvJd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IN3ItQQDc5nZNFaz/lzdcSHwzQ20NJj1UIcH8zsy1RJ5Ul6GfCUG7qGUTBWFF0KB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=iLERV8kkKKWFLVlZSAr71kKQ7VP8MMYolqc6BQrccSLx9J8CXQkxI8fvMk/WCt82&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BZNWaD%2BWxqcori1O1hpju1AShtVhP8pMyFddkIbxiMSkZQa/g0Ty5/zRUlVvbTze&


 
 
 

02/01/2015 15:27    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |JANUARY 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
121611 42204  Victulars/Innkeepers       20,675      20,675         600.00            .00                     20,075.00    2.9%*
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       15,175      15,175         250.00            .00                     14,925.00    1.6%*
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,510       4,510       3,914.00       1,762.00                        596.00   86.8%*
121611 42207  Passport Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0           0         326.50          59.98                       -326.50  100.0%*
121611 42209  Passport Picture Reve            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       15,000      15,000      15,209.15       1,915.00                       -209.15  101.4%*
122121 42400  Fire Permits          500         500         130.00            .00                        370.00   26.0%*
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600         540.00          55.00                         60.00   90.0%*
122221 42501  Parking Permit fee            0           0         175.00          25.00                       -175.00  100.0%*
123131 42600  Public Works Opening            0           0          48.00            .00                        -48.00  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Licenses & Fees                 323,512     323,512     215,468.80      17,772.80                    108,043.20   66.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      323,512     323,512     215,468.80      17,772.80                    108,043.20

 
30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
131122 43505  FD EMPG grant       15,000      15,000       8,776.84       4,388.42                      6,223.16   58.5%*
131122 43506  FD SAFER grant            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      214,000     214,000     197,188.00            .00                     16,812.00   92.1%*
131142 43104  State General Assista       24,000      24,000      14,726.09            .00                      9,273.91   61.4%*
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       40,000      40,000       8,175.51            .00                     31,824.49   20.4%*
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing      977,671     977,671     563,487.71     101,951.79                    414,183.29   57.6%*
131192 43105  Emergency Management            0           0      11,146.71            .00                    -11,146.71  100.0%*
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,400       1,400       1,628.52       1,628.52                       -228.52  116.3%*
131192 43107  Property Tax Relief            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43120  State Education Subsi    9,946,831   9,946,831   6,111,204.09     728,763.73                  3,835,626.91   61.4%*
134546 43121  State Adult Educ. Sub            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43122  St Fiscal Stabilizati            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43125  Education Tax Relief            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43150  Federal Education Sub            0           0      13,758.19            .00                    -13,758.19  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental            11,218,902  11,218,902   6,930,091.66     836,732.46                  4,288,810.34   61.8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   11,218,902  11,218,902   6,930,091.66     836,732.46                  4,288,810.34

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000      28,745.00       3,449.00                     21,255.00   57.5%*
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500         584.00         108.00                        916.00   38.9%*
141111 44121  Rental of Property            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1vvMQNOsP2Y/O%2B2Fpz/1mWMT9XJ93e7bU0n4LvCZTdJSRm80Cx20evLM5QlRPH6g&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WZJh91bpF15kp23mS/axhvaQvVKAr4xZHxPQrn7GJ87am2ecLr2jjJY68OfcepVC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nM/i2BtqUzfj7ZQqxclaBswMORERfg51/5vyC0WvXyk76yQuKWwjyk0QnaKJ2zF%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GunJhNV9JIQYTR67Yzpe2ufbtt8EVU4ZcQDdNTrPE7wdExQURRxEp055LKLq5uEO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3VrzC22ts823tFH9wRZF9OWoqqJk03Ri2BPUs2RHiLl6f9v5S2z9u6XWU7zPabXF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=s75YczFbRL6wVaHd%2BsWzKIaTqGIySBPTNd52r2Mh6JwEPqg576p7hyZY5fvwgLYE&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IsQF32YaNOwDYnlWf0qzWtp4sCivOgYcHbBr%2BxWGqXr2K%2B%2BRjKhyQcmz3wEi52og&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8FeAuIvTVSM97TINQnzVApIhzMslNGK2FnqSNwZP1dkyjE%2BrGL0BXapoiI2M1NKS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nRVyGXpnm4uub2Hq772CqOhxrN1PREEileXy5wI6jAC97%2B%2B6ElFyEbPAfS5rkkTj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wMuXiuwJ8n9QxjujeStyacOS%2B8xSJuhl%2BQ%2BsqenaOkRtqswKiELgGUi9c01kd/I5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cCZ/El2qBsNXVUKgq5W2sJ6h27cvC1kBh6VBWt2xudfTlPXivkC86NOC3PBWBGOk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xZDOATeeiZdvDFHgba3Fo3xy6b0taKcNuTLnMCw06YtVroIX5tvyBKZAtYPJjLC5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=38Xifnwr9M7OQ0PBA7frvC/KR9nMwcPXXOqDiu5fPNA970NXtwbNRzKzn7Gb71rd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=d7qcLiOF%2B1Dxl3SzxO1sXqaIDDEPtF7TU6kfTy0CyXXCuWosE5Yn8NYYIet/%2BWNA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0MvgTcHTY4mT1MzCQkZVb/yU9KwQ6gMUZezPeWxNxCOY2apjkohDb1j%2BXXqimo2C&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CaZfjaToELOfGuayhu8wDEaWdGKlJTm6aaLDXRPnKwgAIzIOh2GEdl%2BYulNG6bgG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lgzZk0obA/WiDskSaUTrsS/Vuc86gT/CpHgw5/1isTMnb/DdFR7Up6zgHzdsZ4gr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1aB%2Bn6rKdVeL4IjIxnTsUrBDnpIp4pRLYTYcq2ohAmGkshLz6CEjcRUUG3Oaioxs&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=z8WwpxVYl4OLjvGlrAGj3og9mcVWWSzqq4qSkQWB3eh5OjBjPs6%2B%2BSgNAPceHe%2B5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KnEb3cOSXQ32Tos/LlL%2Bt6MyNR2zi9tfgp6khHCDKkDH73ou4Mo8/nYTnoWVKtLO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ySaRqKy8bQjlssRb%2BHd46W2tl0VVmbCQDjx5BU2bdKcfZrwQyfRf7TJCB4wsM4O4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QkNEW7LiPVO3WJaPKCfP70pK1wUvDb2guQnao11NIcxWDOgWz0deDgRAkitcIqhL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ckB1nn6Xz8S3Q7EvkR4JKpfNW77cOq9LDR7RFJj%2B9Gb0sics4dmzlxbe6Z6ou7dq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Fyg11BbKDO%2BaR%2BQoo2iyN4AzvAARYZ3KXyZLZohYq03zuNjMv6SIqe2cYKkQvxk5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xDxWQIl9q%2BtV%2BQ68Lnr78uw8mXCrLYpKpGUTeh1GEvf/BhzVw6vV9t%2B6RnJh6/0K&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5jIyzxzBO0oZxqKKrjCL5T76tBczjT28031LUnMlCsC9XS40qsg/3XJ14PnP5bk6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GdTVFy8fY4pf/eGznyIVMMTvhYBPDfu20s/w/1HXaNBuHeUPpJ6MAVEVMsSr0Ds3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=siOTW3IodzOsG6WGwK6HUC/ldcKXIbXB1SlAn5j2FCOcnsNFDfFspYpGpzTG2YP4&


 
 
 

02/01/2015 15:27    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |JANUARY 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
141111 44140  Housing Services Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
141211 44121  Rental of Property            0           0         800.00         100.00                       -800.00  100.0%*
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0           0         629.84         114.38                       -629.84  100.0%*
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      875,000     875,000     546,945.33     126,264.84                    328,054.67   62.5%*
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire        1,000       1,000       1,951.84            .00                       -951.84  195.2%*
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,000       3,000       2,550.00         200.00                        450.00   85.0%*
142221 44162  Police Reports        3,600       3,600       2,510.50            .00                      1,089.50   69.7%*
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       84,000      84,000      84,000.00      84,000.00                           .00  100.0%*
142221 44164  Youth Aid Officer Rei            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        1,000       1,000      38,516.00       1,944.00                    -37,516.00 3851.6%*
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      141,500     141,500      86,524.90      10,994.27                     54,975.10   61.1%*
143131 44174  PW Labor & Materials            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000      13,027.45          50.00                     11,972.55   52.1%*
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      137,000     137,000      24,266.50       1,058.49                    112,733.50   17.7%*
145051 44121  Rental of Property            0           0         800.00            .00                       -800.00  100.0%*
145051 44185  Parks            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
145051 44187  Coffin Pond            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
145051 44189  Recreation Outside Se            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Charges for services          1,322,600   1,322,600     831,851.36     228,282.98                    490,748.64   62.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,322,600   1,322,600     831,851.36     228,282.98                    490,748.64

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        6,250       6,250         750.00          75.00                      5,500.00   12.0%*
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        1,000       1,000         325.00            .00                        675.00   32.5%*
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0           0         100.00            .00                       -100.00  100.0%*
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600       1,216.00         945.00                       -616.00  202.7%*
152221 45101  Parking Tickets       20,000      20,000      21,465.00       4,915.00                     -1,465.00  107.3%*
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          600         600          50.00            .00                        550.00    8.3%*
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          300         300          10.00            .00                        290.00    3.3%*
152221 45106  Restitution            0           0       1,319.27          17.18                     -1,319.27  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties                28,750      28,750      25,235.27       5,952.18                      3,514.73   87.8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       28,750      28,750      25,235.27       5,952.18                      3,514.73

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned       40,000      40,000       5,156.42         864.22                     34,843.58   12.9%*

 
TOTAL Interest earned                  40,000      40,000       5,156.42         864.22                     34,843.58   12.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       40,000      40,000       5,156.42         864.22                     34,843.58

 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Tk242MM9qAltBffTX1Rq8m9N%2BAhwh%2BG3%2BSreEnFuNGA9wzjlbU4ZjRMoUwSBRTnF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=He5xXJ0H4mC3/yHt7su6kUMGfvaLwpcY%2BP9xgEb7v16OueWeSAi7/a8BmRcbGq/e&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wk/Usb6TdKj1L6bxlpnmt9MIBf0wE7rYtoKLLFcdCtvVSLtCtAKpHLCzQToz/tz%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PAQ4dYekbWVQ9/kbic3VAOqNjvsjckdfpQ4vIPYB188EERuUEVE963a1K2CNcwYD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qxVRC099cpEcb8CVXcjfbZfkAoCfuopwOCIWlrwT1L26AkolLAPsJYcjZ7C8xTe7&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0xYDksDEBqZQQ%2BumjIDZnnuT2nmjkeSNrLGAYdJju3Jd2korOqJ491aYDC60tZbR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9AMF1K49p9V4mpd7I2x5KSMPfCBW/VD9l3FnnQH3xBNhsK4QX0h4uafMJ2SGaWfw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dEzYUlRH8V/yu123U/GdxNtzOfch5ACjh%2BkrDKeRIaz6WE1DKHQvJ/1UzHACotAa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2B22Tl0e2BwZpJip6eomk3Bbqr0wugmY5ipfoRRI6BbU9AVubE88uC4d4dlQYq0PG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=RUakewSWf%2BWHSpiYqVg4QxQeg8vW5Ujg5SeFT/kNTRHZ54pJ8guUjQPSkYa0tAm4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CsJfnTP/oUdikCQ1uGcr9wrPx%2B/mcKD2wwGRJMzUbbZBlDAPDW4HbWitfZmzDOxL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BSPAgGPcKEX%2BIc1upxFWOHFZSHBvncEkufDLD%2BJiMHSy%2BxcKWDrkgzi1jbEG4cQd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TwX4uBOkv3wl3RRS%2BmNHnhZYe1TsnfZV6EmO4WkjrjJXUPmKalVULs8x4gJJSUQ7&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0aWxLPwfS1x8lFXlF%2BB6BrqC8Tber2oEhdkG7wVkIJCnrtn2bVAfYCZoY9agQ3DE&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GikQKFWPkwxpHOMbP2W4IFuRbRaqiGX8%2BURIO/iMSrf60QlsEAM9xBq9/x9YQPpI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=md7UGZX3x/HRCg6BTDQHrddTzKYcuIpVVl9lAoz0U0hzBm4DPn/RGggmN2EqUJHD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=A9ESaC7oF/QM3ysKEHVcMWNg7DQZEADHTJCDC4cJnUd6v7fzkkpSqqO5ABb1hScm&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=w40zrZtM2oGSVccoMXYp7ANktw40sVPoOHVEAE%2BaIvT6TA3okc6Lb1HKLW%2BIAkfP&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=VSLTwbBpKoGKAu6dzrPPkRHYtoQTQsHjoBQ9TscbSW1X6Rwm7udvJA0enzgdC5Xx&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0QsOHP/Oou8gIAvd6c%2B38JVKuZJ50zrM9o1aZiQ4ShMH/qV1N4J0Jfv02ykyzQUl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GNvEPQRKbZh7nyztys/cLME9h7j2DxfZD%2BoI8zVnMnw9MUrpe3xP%2BG6y7mpe9SyF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5%2B77ZFKi8oKgt2pNFkDQqbWSNg6K4VouM7n53UqlPNQ12W8AAPS7Me7HgtNx2BTM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=L1RM8uoMWd%2BwcdrjrdvtoqbnyaB0bgedEEf%2B56tUpx6y5EjIJnAsQZE7vVkX1ZGo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XD5q7NikZGqQfMMpHZIK87CDWO4mvf7x2nU5gdM3BCfme225%2BIgcPilAnbccpBpn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1V4xgu8onY52%2BlnmF1RT4zFx4nEDtt6DLSUFPhDXE%2B3SB/p1InNuleHtM3tHGpuu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BbLdSd4t2CVw5HHWmc/IpEx6w/uUc17O0XuJTiRIRVDGEzBrtFhhaCSHVtpLjgFk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kgD/LvZa2wc6TFkDGHz6iFvRu2gBgmXZ9iTUznEgPrZAPaYZsQbHCIS5CNzL7Q7c&


 
 
 

02/01/2015 15:27    |Town of Brunswick |P      4
jhenze              |JANUARY 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       94,000      94,000            .00            .00                     94,000.00     .0%*
171952 47001  MRRA - Eco Dev positi            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000            .00            .00                     15,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Donations                       109,000     109,000            .00            .00                    109,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      109,000     109,000            .00            .00                    109,000.00

 
80 Use of fund balance                
_________________________________________

 
181100 48000  Unapprop General Fund    1,000,000   1,000,000            .00            .00                  1,000,000.00     .0%*
181100 48001  Bal of State Revenue       50,000      50,000            .00            .00                     50,000.00     .0%*
181100 48002  Highway Grant Fund Ba            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
181100 48003  Property Tax Relief B            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
184500 48003  Allocation for School      185,000     185,000            .00            .00                    185,000.00     .0%*
184500 48004  School Balance Forwar    2,810,000   2,810,000            .00            .00                  2,810,000.00     .0%*
184500 48005  Restricted-Sch Bond P      342,000     342,000            .00            .00                    342,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Use of fund balance           4,387,000   4,387,000            .00            .00                  4,387,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    4,387,000   4,387,000            .00            .00                  4,387,000.00

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191011 49000  Administration Miscel            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191111 46200  A/R Late Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000       2,131.30         155.00                     -1,131.30  213.1%*
191111 49101  Workers Comp Dividend            0           0      16,160.00            .00                    -16,160.00  100.0%*
191111 49102  Energy Rebate            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191111 49104  Property & Casualty D            0           0       9,267.00            .00                     -9,267.00  100.0%*
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0           0       1,565.02         194.00                     -1,565.02  100.0%*
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0           0       5,491.27       1,013.61                     -5,491.27  100.0%*
191111 49210  Insurance Proceeds            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191111 49211  Incident Recovery            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191192 49100  Cable Television      225,000     225,000      61,646.18            .00                    163,353.82   27.4%*
191194 49150  Gen Govt Asset Sales            0           0         150.00            .00                       -150.00  100.0%*
191311 49000  Assessing Miscellaneo            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191411 49000  Codes Miscellaneous            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=s3B/y%2BTJ3ti90DXVMrPTetMC01yurJBIQIJKpwHhGVb5MSVhYgl%2B4ZUSE9jLNcED&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9rzLeVMsHVs2B0pVFW50ofywKTbywyNQXTrxMqi0GpYuf5setG7lV7v/VU90w0pg&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UpxlvGQGgqpfjmlYivIObJvgxDAorQeI0Oq9jAgjNfY8vGImSqrX6iJxoeYCKEyX&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LmYHRV3x32X7x2QSQdp/t%2BryQj3gjZnfSw9VB9bLxbx723usR4bpAVEVvM3/iRPp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=zLEqu3X4Z4Rm%2BTgodo8MPfv62JaUtcKvySBjPlx9ZaQwyCf1Yij4Gfb98nQZ6tLO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=14%2Bhcy8FYOcdhmOm79x1tGseVy5Y/tH4Q/K40WgQqGFgxVjplsHZqZ4ooWQOXAIa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=d7ItR2YL3Kq8SBtU2t02qOM299eSD/deKyWt/2Tns1py6S5eNSiyTpGOyFlh6JXk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=yBoN8nMBQreEIIV9HQGEOGoXibAPezlcDxMl8bJBkdEbco4uiEGMTl98D%2BQ9hq6E&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bO6gB9Y8fh3vDeT6xOvQXw2tcyahG7YBHXF1RmnKyP2go9lxSye5EPRgHoPWZsS3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=weJaycQ4/DNPO76hrr5gZPiIKR0LPk5c9lzhZleSrJOKQ8WiDne1qnK8iLF%2Bsoby&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=03WHEIu4MPJjVzGdql/LdQe9UlS02vOaYiLI/LGMhSpYDUX80IvDtHVgfT64zyir&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=VpEF4A%2B9V9B2WPtkc/ossc82qmCB4z5cDiBpqIl7MRtp7Mh4INMeu74STkN/cPHT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0ejC6cyJhcJ9ZxpBKjwzbH2gQjx6rVFgZg/uLoC99jAVgyNP/iFgYcOyUXBqZull&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=To7D%2BB8CEYQoAOeH%2BvIE7tZqOcDOuarf/1BeK6fIFnPB3U2oZbfuvmJznaAvlBJR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=oDGvCoWFXT5ty0IXNGkSxofNUqdRJCTm5xSGEEHohCk%2BZwO1ohwGi0SHN2p/e5cS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9jwxDVbqmt/zlJU50ncQuBny%2B2VcZB6FIsESXVkom3FxCOvH6C1lGUW7xTE9YxFl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/72OuSHHXWIA%2BAEGxzPyauiK6cXIvW1L8/GVy86ExKPf5JZrLchcYAcd5DE2FOUp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=tybBMVtoog7G2tUZ4mD6oK9qIUJklmJE7DCuvFSmYrOvRjGhrHhWeO531SwhVgpf&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=eK1tUARhvb5py3O2K8Sus72SvBdgvlggMMQAKpyKjzTdfr4/oTrAGdvAiKSeVMAs&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=n2DORchkVc7J3r8mjxfLWAcgOl8FQ7zG3oAreI4HEcjV/x2U3s0e6dXM2JQiAtQx&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Oql/aplAj2%2BRMrrH4a0JdJ3QV7oMjAziAEx3zZrE0guBRsL11C4wC9G38iTZ3bUO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6vO6fs0tmCXiTjCLlJ/4iN1VOKVyADGYBQC%2BvNhrfdNpw43T5eNCZFsW6sH0y2eZ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JABd9Xh6uHBC7E5cv8zwSA97YYo/aXzjo/gdzWsBGmr0L4vhsjXVrH7TqXZ4%2Bnmt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9/oHIQRa84YCDaEZi7jIiaJUYXeTOEQH74V/FbvM1u8JXXdm/%2Bgcc/m6aV7o%2BSs4&


 
 
 

02/01/2015 15:27    |Town of Brunswick |P      5
jhenze              |JANUARY 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,250       1,250         835.25          87.00                        414.75   66.8%*
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          150         150         399.00          18.50                       -249.00  266.0%*
191941 49000  Natural Resources Mis            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous          800         800         977.52          52.70                       -177.52  122.2%*
192194 49151  Fire Vehicle Sales            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous            0           0       2,957.74           5.00                     -2,957.74  100.0%*
192294 49153  Police Vehicle Sales        8,000       8,000            .00            .00                      8,000.00     .0%*
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella            0           0         130.14          48.32                       -130.14  100.0%*
193131 49155  PW Fuel Sales - Gasol            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
193131 49156  PW Fuel Sales - Diese            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
193194 49154  Public Works Vehicle            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
194141 49000  Human Services Misc            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
194141 49103  General Assistance Re            0           0       1,323.54            .00                     -1,323.54  100.0%*
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous      118,000     118,000      40,500.15      13,129.00                     77,499.85   34.3%*
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0           0       1,000.33            .00                     -1,000.33  100.0%*
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      710,000     710,000     511,224.73            .00                    198,775.27   72.0%*

 
TOTAL Other                         1,064,200   1,064,200     655,759.17      14,703.13                    408,440.83   61.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,064,200   1,064,200     655,759.17      14,703.13                    408,440.83

 
GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,099,543  47,717,547.43   1,322,634.28                 10,381,995.57   82.1%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TRFeAWKNk%2BKEF8SIfV3lhBztsc2QomCNWlNNPNvuehsLTZfD0CACf83azDHzQ4o6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2iNv1scLHdjD07wZM%2BUbcavqekAWkpcNe6eFSjdCXJ8P%2BjBH3wG4kJhoPrG8Vrfy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WKujpM2Nh7sstqc87jYgexteuVfAV%2B3cZWtS7lXke/oErj14pUU6sHR/dLSFp9eA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2bMl28S8X3EIGZqMa29l8I2rl07Cj7l3IXYYRpsIH0GmOcYESK2LhzYKZ9QElCKP&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Eu19zJi6fj5dgmSkTnMrHNWRf1M4tHVdfj1sqAvjs9ug%2B5hiMdZm0w1b9pUDAGOW&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ldUSYsNYN4awyKieNoKyAFtwJJ6mvINPk7WEvuBiGjCdRmdQaMZsRsrUxYrLR8dK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NYvNnfA00fBljtad4jDJJVuOd783mU8NHAUXRVjLgKAZXV42cC3Udy5qEbgNUACB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MQNTxyYxc4Vyg8uW4cwoFCJtayLUvWzb9Xch3%2Bi2PeJXc3r9AY2YQe5oS/r143c/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kUWEjYdRQAae%2BWmtcnDhL5h2edLUMA82oIiUVwHF/nA2gy5marZ1v%2BFQwUanJzTF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=w6uu3yI8qrT1iF64W7bSq8rNO90k51Fg2nNWWcRpzfyBCEKkFg%2Bybwoog2kM2God&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/2gHWmNLRqp/OWzsAcSboTatgprlPsJXhbGYyvSYuSeS67ccGYARwCbzqLYoVR0R&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fk8JrTQYNljHhu9fXk9ZSphEM7GTAl5N3lflzxHa5S43lnV5/RGpyjOJE2vN1kca&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=o8XqJWyi/vQ5X2j%2BKBPgpgPR3PYZeuI3RNq3tM0E5B%2Bl34KnFv4jwjZXZyJPpG9V&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HqbpAirxHIvGN3tQ7lZDsMEfQthGhcgTH/FbB1ETSs5tEarpeYH42Qek1PNCYjkq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Gmd65MkwIvyLG%2BwKiW7y7JMFLw7OqPYJMqm3ydTUMnlYz1sC6yR8yTtQmVPHvk7a&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=vsz%2BV/udX4B1G6eAEWPTRYgG2ECl5dsbV%2BpvEVwC69Ci3W5z6NDr4cmM14Z6MMA8&


 
 
 

02/01/2015 15:25    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |JANUARY 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,147,860   1,147,860   1,147,860.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Fill                          1,147,860   1,147,860   1,147,860.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      489,397     489,397     303,685.33      43,984.62       4,101.05     181,610.62   62.9%
11100 Finance Department      715,425     715,425     374,193.62      49,658.43         400.00     340,831.38   52.4%
11150 Technology Services Dept      327,848     327,848     195,827.55      32,845.91      44,020.97      87,999.48   73.2%
11200 Municipal Officers       85,615      85,615      37,222.91       1,635.13            .00      48,392.09   43.5%
11210 Munic Bldg - 85 Union      210,720     210,720      92,999.05      14,262.09       5,783.52     111,937.43   46.9%
11230 Risk Management      473,750     473,750     360,731.72     182,917.77            .00     113,018.28   76.1%
11240 Employee benefits            0           0    -134,950.74     -15,205.99            .00     134,950.74  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       47,790      47,790      26,867.31       4,327.23         834.09      20,088.60   58.0%
11300 Assessing      293,660     293,660     151,231.61      21,559.83       2,130.00     140,298.39   52.2%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      362,077     365,477     200,778.38      25,701.75            .00     164,698.62   54.9%
11900 Planning Department      490,779     510,504     276,470.92      38,333.57       7,897.28     226,135.81   55.7%
11950 Economic Development Dept      109,087     109,087      54,814.59       8,670.95            .00      54,272.41   50.2%

 
TOTAL General Government            3,606,148   3,629,273   1,939,872.25     408,691.29      65,166.91   1,624,233.85   55.2%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    3,104,392   3,113,742   1,738,708.86     231,556.80      20,889.70   1,354,143.44   56.5%
12150 Central Fire Station       42,089      45,739      20,747.22       2,498.63         961.00      24,031.02   47.5%
12160 Emerson Fire Station       41,825      41,825      20,928.34       5,138.21       4,798.33      16,098.33   61.5%
12200 Police Department    3,762,478   3,762,478   2,047,266.36     291,935.97            .00   1,715,211.64   54.4%
12210 Police Special Detail            0           0      32,371.31       1,823.02            .00     -32,371.31  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatch      777,412     777,412     423,147.03      60,473.21            .00     354,264.97   54.4%
12250 Police Station Building       98,020      98,020      48,902.92       6,274.98            .00      49,117.08   49.9%
12310 Streetlights      208,000     208,000     114,729.00      18,842.20            .00      93,271.00   55.2%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600       8,289.75         844.09       6,000.00      17,310.25   45.2%
12330 Hydrants      438,790     438,790     225,698.85     110,748.95            .00     213,091.15   51.4%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedness        2,000       2,000         862.65         862.65            .00       1,137.35   43.1%

 
TOTAL Public Safety                 8,506,606   8,519,606   4,681,652.29     730,998.71      32,649.03   3,805,304.92   55.3%

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 



 
 
 

02/01/2015 15:25    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |JANUARY 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

13100 Public Works Administration      429,111     429,111     233,337.17      32,481.76       2,200.00     193,573.83   54.9%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,706,214   1,706,214     944,501.75     113,140.64     106,824.34     654,887.91   61.6%
13130 Refuse Collection      581,847     581,847     314,445.18      46,745.23     178,423.33      88,978.49   84.7%
13140 Recycling      297,729     297,729     152,445.91      23,834.93     143,405.53       1,877.56   99.4%
13150 PW Central Garage      741,300     751,500     429,330.99      70,621.20      50,478.04     271,690.97   63.8%

 
TOTAL Public Works                  3,756,201   3,766,401   2,074,061.00     286,823.76     481,331.24   1,211,008.76   67.8%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      163,607     163,607     100,778.28      11,746.22       1,383.51      61,445.21   62.4%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,766       2,766       1,645.98         697.05            .00       1,120.02   59.5%

 
TOTAL Human Services                  166,373     166,373     102,424.26      12,443.27       1,383.51      62,565.23   62.4%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   35,763,587  35,763,587  17,171,555.09   4,217,856.97            .00  18,592,031.91   48.0%

 
TOTAL Education                    35,763,587  35,763,587  17,171,555.09   4,217,856.97            .00  18,592,031.91   48.0%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      456,225     466,225     253,469.95      40,289.43       2,454.90     210,300.15   54.9%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      678,434     678,434     351,845.95      46,241.77      12,479.75     314,108.30   53.7%
15250 Rec Building 211      160,327     160,327      78,711.21       7,450.80      12,608.08      69,007.71   57.0%
15300 Teen Center       15,000      15,000      15,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus      115,000     115,000     110,000.00            .00            .00       5,000.00   95.7%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,285,000   1,285,000     744,558.55     105,833.33            .00     540,441.45   57.9%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture        2,709,986   2,719,986   1,553,585.66     199,815.33      27,542.73   1,138,857.61   58.1%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

02/01/2015 15:25    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |JANUARY 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 07
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
60       Intergovernmental                  APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental             1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      164,917     164,917     128,538.95          15.00            .00      36,378.05   77.9%
17010 Additional School Assistance       10,000      10,000            .00            .00            .00      10,000.00     .0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000       1,250.00         250.00            .00       1,750.00   41.7%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account        9,000       9,000      30,000.00            .00            .00     -21,000.00  333.3%
17052 School Master Plan            0      14,527            .00            .00      14,526.97            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                    186,917     201,444     159,788.95         265.00      14,526.97      27,128.05   86.5%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      252,000     252,000     228,000.00            .00            .00      24,000.00   90.5%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      264,890     264,890     322,620.00    -263,680.00            .00     -57,730.00  121.8%
18040 Police Station Bond      405,625     405,625     341,687.51            .00            .00      63,937.49   84.2%
18050 2010 Elementary School Bond            0           0    -237,239.14  -1,558,321.85            .00     237,239.14  100.0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                    922,515     922,515     655,068.37  -1,822,001.85            .00     267,446.63   71.0%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,170,395  30,819,217.87   4,034,892.48     622,600.39  26,728,576.96   54.1%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 







 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 







 
 

 
ITEM 15 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

The Town Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, February 23, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers of the Brunswick Town Hall, 85 Union Street, to consider the following: 
 
 The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to Chapter 11 “Marine 

Activities, Structures and Ways” relative to a Harbor Ordinance and mooring 
requirements, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor 
Walker)   

The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to Chapter 12, “Personnel 
Ordinance” to clarify language regarding vacation time accumulation and use, and will take 
any appropriate action. (Manager)  

 
The text of the proposed ordinance is too extensive to be included with this notice.  Anyone having 
questions about the proposed ordinance or wishing to obtain copies of it should contact the Brunswick 
Town Clerk's or Town Manager's Office during regular office hours Monday through Friday from 8:30 
a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 
 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION PLEASE 
CONTACT THE TOWN MANAGER'S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 

Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk of Brunswick, Maine 

 
 

Printed in the Times Record on February 12, 2015 

 





  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

 
 

  Chapter 11 
 

MARINE ACTIVITIES, STRUCTURES AND WAYS* 
__________  
 

*Cross References: Conservation Commission, § 2-76 et seq.; Buildings and Building Regulations, Ch. 5; 
Fire Prevention and Protection, Ch. 7; Housing, Ch. 8; Solid Waste, Ch. 13; Streets, Sidewalks and Other 
Public Places, Ch. 14; Discharge of Sewerage Into Surface Waters Prohibited, § 16-26; Zoning and 
Subdivision of Land, App. A; Marine Construction, App. A, § 407. 

 
State Law References: Harbor Masters, 38 M.R.S.A. § 1 et seq., Disposal of Unclaimed, Lost or Stolen 
Personal Property by Law Enforcement Agencies, 25 M.R.S.A. § 3501 et seq., Law Enforcement Training 
for Harbor Masters 25 M.R.S.A. §  2804-I.  

__________  
 

 Art.    I. Harbor, Coastal, Tidal and Navigable Fresh Waters, §§ 11-1--11-25 
 

 Art.    II. Reserved, §§ 11-26--11-70 
 

 Art. III. Shellfishing, §§ 11-71--11-165 
 

 Div. 1. Generally, §§ 11-71--11-95 
 

 Div. 2.  Marine Resource Committee, §§ 11-96--11-110 
 

 Div. 3. Shellfish Regional Advisory Commission, §§ 11-111--11-130 
 

 Div. 4. License, §§ 11-131--11-160 
 

 Div. 5. Regulations, §§ 11-161--11-165 
 

  ARTICLE I. 
 

HARBOR, COASTAL, TIDAL AND NAVIGABLE FRESH WATERS 
 

Sec. 11-0      General. 
 

(A)  Purpose.  To establish the boundaries of channels in harbors and to regulate other 
activities in the harbors, coastal, tidal, and navigable waters within the Town of 
Brunswick, Maine in order to ensure safety to persons and property, to promote 
availability, preservation, and use of a valuable public resource, and to create a 
fair and efficient framework for administration of the resource. 

 
(B) Authority.  This article is adopted pursuant to the authority granted by 38 

M.R.S.A §§ 1-13, 30-A M.R.S.A § 3001, and the Constitution of Maine, Article 
VIII, Part 2. 

 
(C) Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or other portion of this 

1 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed to be a separate, distinct, and 
independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions. 

 
(Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-1      Definitions. 
 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Article, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them as set forth in this Section, except where the context clearly 
indicates a different meaning:  
 

Anchorage. All navigable waters defined within the municipal boundaries of the 
Town of Brunswick. 
 
Association. An organization of residential property owners, whether in the form 
of a homeowner association, subdivision association, condominium association, 
road association, unit  owner association, planned unit development, residential 
real estate management association, or similar ownership arrangement or 
structure, where the organization assists with maintaining and improving 
Association property or property that is commonly held by its members. 

Boat Yard. A place adjacent to coastal waters, where, as a business or gainful 
occupation, watercraft are hauled, stored, repaired and/or constructed.  
 
Channels. Those paths designated by this Chapter for navigation in or access to 
the harbor, coastal, tidal and navigable fresh waters of Brunswick.   
 
Commercial mooring.  A mooring used with profit as a primary aim.  Commercial 
moorings require Army Corps of Engineers approval.  
 
Commercial use. A use with profit as a primary aim.  
 
Haul Off Mooring. A mooring or tether system for a dinghy or watercraft which 
allows the dinghy or watercraft to be hauled to and from a mooring block or 
anchor to the shore by a system of lines secured at the shore.  
 
Houseboat. A raft, hull, barge or vessel, designed primarily to be used as a 
commercial establishment or living quarters, rather than for navigation.  
 
Marina. An all-tide waterfront facility, whose activities may include sales, 
storage, and maintenance of watercraft, and which provides slips or moorings for 
permanent, rental or transient berthing, and sells fuel, and supplies for watercraft 
and provides vehicle parking. 
 
Mooring. A means of securing a single watercraft to a particular location, other 

2 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

than a pier or dock; an underwater device, either helix, granite block, or 
mushroom, which tethers watercraft. A temporary mooring is one which is 
constructed to be hauled out of the water seasonally.  A permanent mooring is one 
which is constructed to winter over in the water.  A flats mooring is one which is 
located on the mud flats at low tide. 
 
Multi-use Mooring. A registered, non-commercial mooring that hosts more than 
one watercraft over the course of a season for personal use only.  Personal use 
includes, but is not limited to, use by a visiting family member.  Multi-use 
moorings cannot be rented or leased and owners of multi-use moorings must 
inform the Harbor Master regarding what watercraft will use the mooring each 
season.  No more than one watercraft may be moored at a time. 

 
Non-resident. All persons not residents of the Town of Brunswick are classified 
as non-residents. 

 
Private mooring.  Any mooring that is not a commercial mooring or rental 
mooring. 
 
Rental mooring.  Rental moorings are considered commercial moorings and 
require Army Corps of Engineers approval. 
 
Resident. A person who occupies a dwelling for more than six (6) months in a 
calendar year within the Town of Brunswick, a Brunswick real estate tax payer, or 
a registered voter in the Town of Brunswick.  
 
Town Wharfs. Any floats or structures located at town owned or operated boat 
launches.  
 
Watercraft. Any type of vessel, boat, barge, float, or craft used on the water. 
 
Yacht Club. A private association, corporation or other legal entity organized to 
promote recreational boating. 
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-2      Channels. 
 

(A)  Establishment of channels. Two (2) channels are established, described as 
follows: 

 
(1) Commencing at the Old Bath Road bridge as it crosses the New Meadows 

River, thence following the high water mark of the New Meadows River 
southerly to the southerly tip of Howard Point, thence easterly to the town line 
between Brunswick and West Bath, thence following the town line northerly 
to the Bath Road bridge, thence westerly along the Bath Road bridge to the 

3 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

point of beginning. 
 

(2) Commencing at the mean high water line on the Mere Point Boat Launch 
ramp surface and extending approximately three hundred fifty (350) feet to 
the southeast between buoys marking the fifty (50) foot wide approach lane to 
the ramp. 

 
(B)  Passage of vessels. A person shall not use any watercraft or any other device or 

structure within the described channels so as to interfere with or impede the 
passage of vessels in the channel in any manner. 

 
(C)  Mooring. A person shall not place, anchor, or moor any watercraft within the 

described channels without the permission of the Harbor Master.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-3      Harbor Master. 
 

(A)  Appointment. The town shall appoint a Harbor Master every three years (or upon 
vacancy) on May 1st for a period of three years.  Pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. § 1-A, a 
person appointed or reappointed as Harbor Master must complete a basic harbor 
master training course offered by a statewide harbor masters association within 
one year after being appointed or reappointed, unless that person has previously 
completed such a course.  

 
 (B)  Duties. The Harbor Master shall have the following responsibilities and duties: 
 

(1) To the extent of jurisdiction, enforce any and all federal, state and local laws, 
ordinances, codes, rules or regulations relating to the management and control 
of the Town of Brunswick's harbor, coastal, tidal and navigable fresh waters, 
shores, coastline, boat launch facilities, and wharfs; 
 

(2) Provide information or seek input as appropriate from any source, including 
the Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission, the Marine Resources 
Committee, Marine Wardens, Town Manager, Town Council, or Town 
Attorney; 
 

(3) Approve and control the placement of all moorings within the harbor, coastal, 
tidal, and navigable fresh waters of the Town of Brunswick pursuant to the 
provisions of this Ordinance.  

 
(4) Maintain accurate records of all registered moorings; and 

 
(5) Serve as staff to the Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission (the 

“Commission”), regularly attend Commission meetings, inform the 
Commission of his/her activities and provide such information as may be 

4 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

requested by the Commission for the execution of its duties.  The Harbor 
Master shall also report to the Town Council regarding his/her activities and 
the activities of the Commission. 
 

 (C)  Authority to carry a weapon and make arrests. Pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. § 1, a 
Harbor Master may not make arrests or carry a firearm unless the Harbor Master 
has successfully completed the training requirements prescribed in Title 25, 
Section 2804-I of the Maine Revised Statutes.  A harbor master who has 
completed this training shall be assigned to a division under the Police 
Department.  

 
 (Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of 4-7-08(1); Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-4      Moorings. 
 

(A)  Mooring Assignments. Mooring privileges in the Town of Brunswick shall be 
assigned pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 3 and 11. Consequently, mooring 
assignments are available to individuals who are the owners or masters of a 
watercraft and who own shore rights to a parcel of land, which is defined as a lot 
that satisfies applicable minimal buildable lot size requirements and includes at 
least 100 feet of shoreline frontage.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, mooring 
assignments are also available to individuals who, prior to January 1, 1987, 
owned shore rights of at least 100 feet of frontage regardless of the size of the lot. 
Only one mooring may be assigned to any shorefront parcel of land under this 
privilege. 

 
(B)  Grandfathered moorings. Notwithstanding Section 11-4(A), mooring privileges in 

lawful existence on the effective date of this Ordinance shall be preserved.  
Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as a limitation on the authority of the 
Harbor Master with respect to use and location of the moorings.   

 
(C) Transferability of Mooring Assignments. Pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 3 and 3-A, 

mooring assignments may not be transferred unless the mooring is used for 
commercial fishing purposes.  Transfer of a mooring assignment used for 
commercial fishing purposes is permitted only at the request or death of the 
mooring owner, only to a member of the mooring owner’s family, and only if the 
mooring assignment will continue to be used for commercial fishing purposes.  A 
member of the mooring owner’s family means a parent, child, or sibling, by birth 
or adoption, including a relation of the half blood, or the mooring owner’s spouse.   

 
(D) Registration. Owners of parcels that qualify under Section 11-4(A) who desire a 

mooring assignment and owners of grandfathered mooring assignments must 
submit a mooring registration form to the Harbor Master each year.   

 
In the year 2015, the Harbor Master shall no later than two weeks after enactment 
of this Ordinance by the Town Council send via U.S. Mail or email a notice to all 

5 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

registered mooring owners informing them of the June 1st deadline for submission 
of the annual mooring registration form.  Each year thereafter, the Harbor Master 
shall no later than January 31st send via U.S. Mail or email a notice to all 
registered mooring owners informing them of the May 1st deadline for submission 
of the annual registration form.  Notice of the registration deadline shall also be 
posted in the Town Hall and on the Town of Brunswick’s website no later than 
January 31st.   
 
Mooring registration forms may be downloaded from the Town of Brunswick’s 
website or obtained from the Town Clerk or the Harbor Master.   

 
Registration forms shall require the following information: 

 
(1) Description of the watercraft to be moored, including state and/or federal 

registration numbers, make and model, color, length, propulsion, draft, and 
weight; 

 
(2) The applicant’s name (or names, in the event the mooring is to be held jointly 

by adult members of the same household), residence address or local business 
address, mailing address (designated by the applicant as the address where the 
applicant will accept notices under this Ordinance), home or cell phone 
number, and email address;   

 
(3) Type and weight of mooring; 

 
(4) Type and size of bottom and top chains;  

 
(5) A name, address, and telephone number of an emergency contact, whom the 

mooring owner authorizes to make decisions surrounding the mooring in his 
or her absence;  

  
(6) GPS location (or proposed location) of the mooring; 

 
(7) The signature of the applicant, or the applicant’s designee, and the date of the 

application; and 
 

(8) Dates of installation and of the most recent inspection. 
 
 (E) Fees. The Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission will recommend mooring 

registration fees to be adopted by the Brunswick Town Council.  Mooring 
registration fees may be amended from time to time. Mooring registration fee 
schedules will be available at the Town Clerk’s Office and on the Town of 
Brunswick’s website. 

 
(F) Mooring Inspection Required. Every two years, each registered mooring shall be 

inspected by the mooring owner at the mooring owner’s expense and must be 

6 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

determined by the mooring owner to be in a safe condition.  The date of 
inspection must be recorded on the mooring registration form.  The mooring 
owner is responsible for the adequacy and performance of all mooring gear, 
tackle, and maintenance thereof.  The Harbor Master has the authority to inspect 
at any time any mooring and to require any necessary maintenance or replacement 
of parts or the whole mooring, tackle and/or gear, for which the mooring owner 
shall be responsible for all costs incurred. 

 
The Town of Brunswick assumes no liability whatsoever for the actual 
performance or adequacy of any mooring system employed by a mooring owner. 

 
(G)  Placement standards. The Harbor Master shall approve the location of all 

moorings in the harbor, coastal, and tidal waters of Brunswick.  All moorings 
shall meet the following standards: 

 
(1) Moorings shall be adequate for the size, weight, and windage of the 

watercraft. 
 

(2) Moorings shall be located in areas that do not interfere with navigation. 
 

(3) Moorings shall not encroach into the channels of Brunswick. 
 

(4) Moorings shall be located in areas that do not cause unreasonable adverse 
impacts on natural resources.  Conditions that may result in an unreasonable 
adverse impact on natural resources include, but are not limited to: 

 
i. The presence of eel grass or other submerged vegetation; 

 
ii.  The presence of a significant shellfish habitat, or important recreational or 

commercial fishing ground; 
 

iii. The proposed location is within mapped Significant Shorebird Feeding or 
Roosting Habitat (based on Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and 
Wildlife and Maine Department of Environmental Protection Maps); 

 
iv. The proposed location is within mapped Tidal Waterfowl and Wadingbird 

Habitat (based on Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife and 
Maine Department of Environmental Protection Maps); 

 
v. The proposed location is within habitat for listed rare, threatened, or 

endangered species, and regular use of a mooring in that location would 
unreasonably adversely impact the species; or 

 
vi. The proposed location would cause unreasonable adverse impacts to a 

saltmarsh. 
 

7 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

Nothing in this Subsection shall be construed to limit the authority of the 
Harbor Master to consider other factors and make determinations on 
unreasonable adverse impacts to natural resources on a case-by-case basis.  
Where practicable, the Harbor Master shall work with the mooring owner to 
evaluate and select placement and tackle alternatives in order to mitigate 
unreasonable adverse impacts on natural resources.  
 

(5)  The Harbor Master’s authority under this Section shall not be inconsistent 
with Army Corps of Engineers and Maine Department of Environmental 
Protection approvals governing existing commercial moorings in mooring 
fields.   
 

(6) Where practicable, the Harbor Master shall, if so requested, locate the 
mooring within reasonable proximity of the mooring owner’s property. 

 
All moorings that meet the above standards but are not placed in the location 
approved by the Harbor Master shall be moved by the owner at his or her own 
expense in accordance with the instructions of the Harbor Master.  In the event of 
a mooring owner’s failure to comply with the relocation and/or removal 
instructions of the Harbor Master, the Harbor Master shall move or remove the 
improperly located mooring and the cost shall be borne by the owner of the 
mooring.  Before removing a mooring, the Harbor Master shall notify the owner, 
if ownership can be determined, by mail at the owner’s last known address, or by 
email.  The notice shall inform the owner of the desired action and of the fact that 
the mooring will be removed at the expense of the owner if the owner does not 
comply.  If the matter is not settled to the Harbor Master’s satisfaction within two 
(2) weeks after notice was given, the Harbor Master may then move or remove 
the mooring. 

 
(H) Identifying Numbers. Identifying numbers shall be issued to mooring owners, and 

mooring balls and buoys must be clearly marked with the issued number.  
Numbers shall be a minimum of four (4) inches and visible at all times.  
Replacement mooring balls and buoys shall maintain the originally assigned 
number.  An annual mooring registration sticker, issued by the Harbor Master 
upon completion and approval of the mooring registration, shall be affixed to the 
top of the mooring buoy for which it was assigned.   

 
(I)  Ownership of Moorings. All mooring assignments (with the exception of marina 

moorings) shall be used exclusively for the use of the mooring owner and solely 
for the watercraft (or in the case of a multi-use mooring, multiple watercraft) 
listed in the application. 

 
(J) Termination. All persons who had been assigned a mooring and whose mooring 

assignment is to be terminated by the Harbor Master for reasons of non-
compliance with this article or any other reason shall receive written notification 
from the Harbor Master.  This notice shall state the fact of the termination and the 

8 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

reason for termination, and list the appeal procedures designated in Section 11-14 
of this Chapter. 

 
(K) Associations. Associations may establish and manage moorings plans on behalf of 

Association members, subject to input and approval by the Harbor Master. 
Mooring areas controlled by Associations shall be subject to the following 
requirements: 

 
(1) The Association manages moorings in designated areas; 

(2) The Association provides oversight of member mooring use, including 
inspections; and 

(3) The Association is registered with the Harbor Master and provides 
member/mooring holder rosters and mooring location plans. 

 Nothing in this Subsection shall be construed as a limitation on the ability of the 
Harbor Master to carry out his responsibilities and duties as set forth in this 
Chapter. 

 
(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-5      Operation of watercraft.  
 

No watercraft shall be operated within two-hundred (200) feet of shore and within 
established mooring fields or moorings placed in a designated area in accordance with 
Section 11-4 (K) of this Chapter at a speed in excess of five knots or that causes a wash, 
wake or waves that disturbs or damages any wharf,  float or anchored or moored dock, or 
watercraft or that endangers any person or property.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-6      Town launch facilities. 
 

(A)  Use of town launch facilities consistent with the provisions of this article shall be 
permitted. 
 
(1) Commercial uses of town launch facilities require a special activity permit 

from the Town Clerk. 
 

 (B)  The following activities are prohibited at town launch facilities: 
 
   (1) Storage of bait or catch for unreasonable periods of time, as determined by 

the Harbor Master. 
   
   (2) Processing of seafood products.  For the purposes of this Section, 

"processing" does not include washing clams by repeated submersion of 

9 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

bushel bags in the water. 
 
   (3) Anchoring or mooring. 
 
   (4) Tying up to wharfs for more than thirty (30) minutes.  
 
   (5) Swimming or fishing except in designated areas.  
 
  (6)  Power loading or unloading, watercraft washing, watercraft painting, and 

bilge draining.   
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of 4-7-08(2); Ord. of ________) 
 
Sec. 11-7      Disruptive conduct.  
 

No person shall disrupt safe and lawful activities, or in any way threaten the public 
safety, in or around town launch facilities, wharfs, and harbors, coastal, tidal and 
navigable waters of the Town of Brunswick.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-8      Menaces to navigation.  
 

The Harbor Master is authorized to take whatever action is necessary and appropriate to 
remove any menace to navigation within the harbor, coastal, tidal and navigable fresh 
waters of the Town of Brunswick.  This shall include, but is not limited to, contracting 
for removal of the menace by the authorities of the State of Maine, Federal Government, 
or a private contractor at the expense of either the Town of Brunswick, some other 
governmental entity, or the private entity or individual responsible  for the  creation of the 
menace.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-9      Dumping of sewage prohibited.  
 

No person may discharge, spill or permit to be discharged sewage, garbage, or other 
pollutants from any watercraft into the harbor, coastal, tidal and navigable fresh waters of 
the Town of Brunswick or onto the ice or banks thereof in such a manner that the same 
may fall or be washed into such waters or in such a manner that the drainage may flow 
into such waters.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05) 
 
Sec. 11-10      Failure to obey order of the Harbor Master.  
 

As provided by 38 M.R.S.A.§ 13, a person is guilty of failure to obey an order of the 

10 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

Harbor Master if the person intentionally, knowingly or recklessly fails to obey any 
lawful order of the Harbor Master authorized pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. §1 et seq.  Failure 
to obey an order of the Harbor Master is a Class E Crime.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05) 
 
Sec. 11-11      Forfeiture.  
 

Any watercraft, skiff, float, dock, fishing gear, or wharf left tied to a town wharf without 
proper  identification, or left sunk or awash, for a period exceeding forty-eight (48) hours 
shall be deemed abandoned for the purposes of this Section.  Any abandoned property 
shall be impounded by the Harbor Master and disposed of according to the procedure 
outlined in Title 25, Chapter 401.  The Town shall not be liable for any damage to 
abandoned property that is impounded in accordance with this Section.   
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-12      Enforcement.  
 

This Chapter shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of 38 M.R.S.A § 1 et seq. and 
30-A M.R.S.A. § 4452.  Any person found in violation of this article shall, after notice 
and hearing, lose his or her mooring privileges and all rights to use the town launch 
facilities and wharfs.  In addition, the town shall have available all other remedies 
provided by law.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-13      Boat storage. 
 

No boat, vessel, raft, barge, or other watercraft shall be stored overnight in or on any 
navigable waters within the town without being licensed or permitted to do so.  A person 
found in violation will be subjected to the cost of removing the vessel, boat, raft, barge, 
or watercraft and be fined one hundred and fifty dollars ($150.00). 
 

(Ord. of 06-20-11(1)) 
  
Sec. 11-14      Appeals. 
 

(A) Any person directly aggrieved by a decision, order, rule, or action by the Harbor 
Master may appeal said decision, order, rule or action to the Rivers and Coastal 
Waters Commission. 

 
(B) Such appeal shall be made in writing within 30 calendar days of the decision, 

order, rule, or act from which the appeal is taken. It must state with specificity the 
decision, order, rule, or act from which the appeal is taken and the reason for the 
appeal.  The Commission at its next regular meeting, or pursuant to a specially 

11 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

called meeting, shall consider the appeal.  The decision on appeal by the 
Commission shall be written and state the reasons and basis for the decision. 

 
(C) Any decision, order, rule, or act by the Harbor Master concerning the location of 

moorings, as a result of which location there is an immediate danger to life or 
property, shall not be stayed pending the appeal. 

 
(D) Any party directly aggrieved by the decision of the Commission may appeal 

within thirty (30) days to the superior court in accordance with the Maine Rules of 
Civil Procedure. 

 
(Ord. of ________) 
 
Sec. 11-15      Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission. 
 

(A) Purpose. The Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission works toward harbor 
improvement and management, consistent with the objectives and priorities of the 
Town’s Harbor Management Plan (“HMP”).  The Commission will bring 
recommendations for policy, oversight and/or action(s) to the Town Council, as 
appropriate.  The Town Council will have ultimate authority over adopting the 
Commission’s recommendations. 
 

(B) Administrative Matters. The Commission will meet bimonthly, quarterly, or other 
frequency as determined by the Commissioners and Staff.  The Commission will 
elect its slate of officers, at an interval deemed most appropriate to its 
membership. 

 
(C) Appeals. The Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission also sits as a board of 

appeals to hear appeals from any person aggrieved by any order, rule, or action by 
the Harbor Master as set forth in Section 11-14 of this Chapter.   

 
(D) Staffing and Membership. The primary staff to the Commission shall be the 

Harbor Master. The Commission will be composed of seven (7) Voting Members; 
Two (2) Ex-Officio Non-Voting Members; Two (2) Alternates; and One (1) Non-
Voting Primary Staff Member, as described in the Town Council charge adopted 
April 28, 2014, as amended from time to time.  

 
(Ord. of ________) 
 
11-16--11-25      Reserved. 

12 
7905394.2 



 

 

Stephen E.F. Langsdorf 
slangsdorf@preti.com 
Direct Dial: 207.791.3291 

 
 

 
 

8 0 9 8 3 0 4 . 2  

M E M O R A N D U M  

TO: John Eldridge 
  

FROM: Stephen E.F. Langsdorf and Laura A. Rideout 

CC: Dan Devereaux 

DATE: February 18, 2015 

RE: Status of Harbor Ordinance Amendments 

  
A. INTRODUCTION 

This memorandum summarizes the current status of the Brunswick Rivers and Coastal Waters 
Commission’s revised Harbor Ordinance and the legal research that has been conducted to date 
to evaluate specific challenges associated with this Ordinance.  The following topics are covered: 

 Background information on the Ordinance revisions; 

 A summary of the changes to the Ordinance that have been made by the Rivers and 
Coastal Waters Commission; 

 A summary of the statutory framework for regulation of mooring assignments (and for 
otherwise regulating the harbor, coastal, tidal and navigable freshwaters of the town); 

 A summary of the specific legal and policy challenges that the Rivers and Coastal Waters 
Commission has confronted with respect to the Harbor Ordinance; and 

 A conclusion regarding an outstanding Ordinance interpretation issue that should be 
addressed by the Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission and by the Town Council in 
connection with approval and enactment of the revised Harbor Ordinance. 

B. BACKGROUND 

In January of 2014, consultants retained by the Town of Brunswick prepared a Harbor 
Management Plan.  The purpose of the plan was to address the growing need for effective 
management of the town’s coastal and navigable waters.  It presented information on the existing 
conditions within Brunswick harbor areas, identified specific issues and objectives, and 
recommended improvement of the town’s Harbor Ordinance.  The Brunswick Rivers and Coastal 



 

 
 - 2 - 

8 0 9 8 3 0 4 . 2  

Waters Commission was formed in 2014 to oversee implementation of the Harbor Management 
Plan.  Since then, the Commission has worked to revise the Harbor Ordinance in order to 
implement the recommendations of the Harbor Management Plan, to bring the Ordinance more 
in line with the requirements of state law, and to more effectively address the unique 
circumstances of Brunswick’s waters.  The Commission’s review of the Harbor Ordinance has 
been extensive.  The process has been ongoing since last year and there has been significant 
public participation.  Unique characteristics of the existing conditions in Brunswick presented 
obstacles that the Commission has had to grapple with.  Conflicting interests within the town 
related to assignment of mooring privileges have manifested themselves meeting after meeting.  
Several important legal questions arose during this process and have merited consideration.  

At the January 28, 2015 meeting of the Brunswick Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission, the 
Commissioners approved the current draft of the Harbor Ordinance and voted to send the 
Ordinance to the Town Council.  There is recognition by the Commission that there is still a lot 
of work to be done to address all of the recommendations in the Harbor Management Plan, but 
that the current revisions to the Ordinance are an important first step.   

C. SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE REVISIONS 

The 2005 Harbor Ordinance contained a few definitions, a description of Brunswick’s channels, 
a brief description of the Harbor Master’s duties, a simple mooring registration procedure, and 
several other regulations concerning conduct on Brunswick’s waters (i.e., menaces to navigation, 
boat storage, and operation of watercraft).  The Ordinance, for the first time, required registration 
of existing moorings located in Brunswick’s waters.  The Ordinance was revised moderately in 
2008.  The 2014-2015 revisions largely built upon the framework that was established in 2005.   

Major revisions include: 

 Addition of a “purpose” statement: 

Purpose.  To establish the boundaries of channels in harbors and to regulate other 
activities in the harbors, coastal, tidal, and navigable waters within the Town of 
Brunswick, Maine in order to ensure safety to persons and property, to promote 
availability, preservation, and use of a valuable public resource, and to create a fair and 
efficient framework for administration of the resource. 

 Insertion of additional definitions that are relevant to various Ordinance provisions and 
permit registration forms. 

 A more robust description of the appointment procedure and duties of the Harbor Master. 

 A more robust description of eligibility for mooring assignments, a more detailed 
description of mooring registration informational requirements, a fee schedule for 
mooring registration, a mooring inspection requirement, and more detailed mooring 
placement standards. 



 

 
 - 3 - 

8 0 9 8 3 0 4 . 2  

 An acknowledgement that currently existing mooring privileges will continue to be 
recognized after enactment of the Ordinance. 

 A statement that mooring assignments are not transferrable unless the mooring is used for 
commercial fishing purposes, and in that case, only if specific criteria are satisfied. 

 A nod to the Seapoint Land Company Association with respect to management of the 
moorings owned by Association members. 

 A procedure for appealing decisions of the Harbor Master to the Rivers and Coastal 
Waters Commission. 

 A statement of the Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission’s purpose, as well as a brief 
description of staffing and membership. 

D. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

For the most part, language that has been added to the Ordinance mirrors the language in the 
State statute governing Harbor Masters, Title 38 of the Maine Revised Statutes, Chapter 1, 
Subchapter I, Sections 1-13.  Under state law, municipalities are empowered to regulate harbors 
and to enforce their harbor regulations.  Municipalities may keep open convenient channels for 
navigation, establish boundary lines for channels, and assign suitable portions of their harbors 
and other coastal and tidal waters within their jurisdiction for anchorages.  38 M.R.S.A. § 2.  
These rules and regulations are to be enforced and carried out by the Harbor Master of the town.  
Id.   

The statute sets forth a “minimum priority system” for assignment of mooring privileges (38 
M.R.S.A. §§ 3, 3-A), but affords municipalities the option of enacting ordinances to locate 
additional moorings and establish a process for assigning those moorings (38 M.R.S.A. §§ 7, 7-
A, 8).  The statute makes clear in section 3 that assignment of mooring privileges does not confer 
any right, title, or interest in submerged or inter-tidal lands owned by the State.  Section 3 also 
makes clear that mooring assignments may not be transferred (unless the town exercises its 
ability under section 3-A to enact an ordinance that allows transfer of moorings used for 
commercial fishing purposes in certain circumstances).  Section 7 of the statute authorizes towns 
to enact ordinance provisions “that recognize that mooring privileges in lawful existence on the 
effective date of an ordinance may be preserved or continued after adoption of that ordinance.”  
Section 7 is worded to suggest that notwithstanding the other express requirements in the statute, 
the town does have the discretion to enact ordinance provisions geared towards tailoring harbor 
regulations to local conditions (i.e., making mooring assignment available to a larger group of 
people beyond riparian owners who qualify under section 3). 

To put it simply, the statute contemplates two avenues for individuals to obtain mooring 
assignments: 

(1) The Harbor Master can assign one mooring privilege to an individual who owns a 
shorefront parcel of land, who owns or masters a boat, and who applies for a mooring 
assignment.  38 M.R.S.A. § 3.  A shorefront parcel is defined in the statute as the larger 



 

 
 - 4 - 

8 0 9 8 3 0 4 . 2  

of the minimal buildable lot size in the municipality or 20,000 square feet and, in either 
case, including 100 feet of shoreline frontage.  38 M.R.S.A. § 11.  Notwithstanding this, 
persons who owned shore rights to a parcel with at least 100 feet of frontage, regardless 
of the size of the lot, prior to January 1, 1987 are entitled to mooring privileges under 
section 3.  38 M.R.S.A. § 3. 

(2) The town can enact an ordinance where it establishes a process for assigning additional 
mooring privileges and for determining the location of these moorings.  38 M.R.S.A. §7.  
It can also create a waiting list for assignment of those mooring privileges.  Id.  If the 
town does locate and devise a process of assigning moorings pursuant to section 7, it 
must abide by the requirements in section 7-A and 8, which require establishment of a 
“waiting list” if it “receives more applications for mooring privileges … than there are 
mooring spaces.”  There are also various requirements that apply with respect to 
nonresident applicants for these mooring assignments that must be satisfied.  

E. CHALLENGES THAT PRESENTED DURING THE ORDINANCE REVIEW 
PROCESS 

Because Brunswick has not enacted an Ordinance that determines the location of moorings or 
establishes a process assigning mooring privileges pursuant to sections 7, 7-A, and 8, the only 
way for the Harbor Master in Brunswick to assign mooring privileges is where the mooring 
applicant meets the requirements in 38 M.R.S.A. § 3.  In other words, the applicant must be an 
owner of a shorefront parcel of land, and the owner or master of a boat.  The 2005 version of the 
Ordinance was silent on the issue of who was eligible to apply for and receive a mooring 
assignment in the Town of Brunswick.  The Commission thought it would be desirable to make 
it clear to the public who is eligible for a mooring assignment in the Town of Brunswick in light 
of the fact that the town has not at this time adopted an ordinance determining additional 
mooring locations and a process for assigning them.   

The reality is that a large number of the current mooring assignments in the Town of Brunswick 
are held by individuals who own lots that do not meet the statutory definition of a “parcel of 
land,” and therefore were never eligible under state law to receive a mooring assignment in the 
first place.  These people are concerned about the status of their mooring assignments after 
enactment of the new Ordinance.  Several options for continuing to recognize these mooring 
privileges going forward have been evaluated by the Commission.  Ultimately, the Commission 
opted to utilize a grandfather provision to preserve these currently existing mooring privileges 
(in accordance with section 7).  The language that was adopted (section 11-4(B) of the 
Ordinance) copies the language in the statute.   

There are two related issues with legal implications that spun off of this “grandfather clause” 
solution.  Section 11-4(C) of the Ordinance, which governs transferability of mooring 
assignments, was inserted in order to allow transfer of mooring assignments used for commercial 
fishing purposes.  Absent this ordinance provision, the Harbor Master would have no authority to 
allow transfer of those privileges because the general rule, set forth in section 3 of the statute, 
states that mooring assignments may not be transferred.  Section 11-4(C) of the Ordinance 
essentially copies the statutory language from 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 3 and 3-A.  At the January 12 
Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission meeting, in light of section 11-4(C) of the proposed 



 

 
 - 5 - 

8 0 9 8 3 0 4 . 2  

Ordinance , a member of the public, Kate Debevoise, recommended that additional language be 
inserted to provide for automatic re-registration of the mooring privileges grandfathered under 
section 11-4(B) of the Ordinance.  Kate was concerned about what would happen to mooring 
assignments if the owner of grandfathered mooring privileges died or sold the property.  She 
wanted to ensure that the grandfathered mooring owners’ successors would be able to re-register 
those grandfathered mooring privileges.  

In response, a discussion took place regarding the statute’s prohibition on transfer of mooring 
assignments unless the mooring assignment was used for commercial fishing purposes (sections 
3 and 3-A of the statute) and the fact that because Brunswick has not implemented a mooring 
allocation system under section 7, its ability to continue to recognize grandfathered mooring 
privileges beyond the current owners of those privileges appears to be limited by the statute.  For 
example, if the town enacted an ordinance with a procedure for assigning additional moorings, it 
could chose to give priority to individuals who have historically enjoyed mooring privileges (and 
their successors) without running afoul of 38 M.R.S.A. § 3’s prohibition on transfer.  In this case, 
it would be a policy decision and the legal question associated with continuing to recognize these 
mooring privileges beyond the initial owner of the grandfathered mooring would be avoided.  
The Commission has discussed this option, however, there are several important obstacles that 
make it challenging for Brunswick to implement this particular solution.  In the long-term, the 
Commission intends to evaluate public access.   

The second issue is also related to the town’s ability to transfer grandfathered mooring 
assignments.  Off the record, a member of the public in attendance at the December 8, 2014 
Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission Meeting commented that she would simply register her 
mooring in the name of a trust before the Ordinance got enacted.  This way the mooring 
applicant would technically never change (even if the individual who enjoys the mooring 
privilege dies or sells his or her property).  Presumably, the new owners would also become 
beneficiaries of the trust and the moorings would continue to be registered in the name of the 
trust.  On the record during the January 12, 2015 Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission 
meeting, Commissioner Harrower opined about the use of a trust to avoid the implications of the 
prohibition on transfer of mooring privileges.  The “trust mooring issue” has not otherwise been 
addressed on the record.   

These two related issues – the bounds of the grandfathered mooring privileges relative to the 
initial mooring owner’s successors in interest and the use of a trust to avoid transfers in mooring 
ownership – have not been addressed head on by the Commission.   It was clear at the January 12 
meeting that an impasse had been reached.   

F. CONCLUSION 

The Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission has presented an ordinance which establishes a 
system for regulation of mooring assignments which complies with state law.  The Harbor 
Master will be charged with addressing the grandfathering and assignability issues at the time of 
re-registration. 



 
 

 
ITEM 16 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 January	27,	2015	
	
RE:	 Personnel	Policy	
	 Vacation	Policy	Amendments	
	
	
Attached	is	a	proposed	amendment	to	the	Personnel	Policy	to	require	that	exceeding	the	maximum	
allowable	accrued	balance	can	only	be	accomplished	with	a	written	request	and	written	approval.		
Under	the	proposed	amendment,	the	authorization	to	exceed	the	maximum	shall	expire	the	following	
year	unless	another	exception	is	requested	and	approved	in	writing.		The	amendment	also	makes	it	
clear	that	compliance	with	the	policy	will	be	measured	each	June	30th.		The	measurement	date	is	
consistent	with	the	Town’s	past	practice.	
	
The	proposed	amendment	also	makes	it	clear	that	an	employee	who	works	his	or	her	vacation	cannot	
receive	both	vacation	pay	and	regular	pay	for	the	same	time	unless	an	exception	is	approved	in	
writing.		An	exception	may	be	warranted,	for	example,	if	an	employee,	having	received	approval	for	a	
vacation,	is	subsequently	called	back	or	asked	to	work.			
	
Finally,	the	proposed	amendment	makes	it	clear	that,	once	a	vacation	commences,	an	employee	
cannot	substitute	another	form	of	leave	time	for	the	vacation	time.	
	
As	the	Personnel	Policy	is	actually	an	ordinance,	the	proposed	amendments	will	require	a	public	
hearing	prior	to	adoption.		I	recommend	that	Town	Council	set	a	public	hearing	for	February	23rd.	
	
	
Attachments	
	
	
	



Sec. 12-81. - Vacation.  
 

(a)  Regular full-time employees. Each regular full-time employee shall be awarded annual vacation 
time with pay. Requests for leave must be approved by the employee's supervisor who shall take 
into consideration adequate staffing requirements. In accordance with the employee's current term 
of continuous employment based upon the standard work weeks depicted below, vacation shall be 
awarded as follows:  
 

Avg. hours worked per week 20 35 37.5 40

For years 1—5, accrue at this rate: 
(2 wks/yr) 

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) .769 1.346 1.442 1.538

For years 6—13 accrue at this rate: 
(3 wks/yr) 

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.154 2.019 2.163 2.308

For years 14—19 accrue at this rate: 
(4 wks/yr) 

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.538 2.692 2.885 3.077

For years 20+, accrue at this rate: 
(5 wks/yr) 

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.923 3.365 3.606 3.846

 
(1)  If a holiday falls within the employee's vacation period, the employee will not be charged 

vacation for such holiday.   
 

(2) Employees will be eligible to use any accrued vacation time as earned, subject to the approval of 
the supervisor or department head.  Once an employee’s approved vacation time has commenced, 
no other paid leave time may be substituted for the approved vacation time. 

 
(3) No employee shall be entitled to receive both their normal pay and vacation pay for the same 

days actually worked unless authorized in writing by the town manager. 
 

(4) Employees, regardless of length of service, may carry a balance of up to thirty (30) days of 
vacation leave, measured annually each June 30.  Any balance in excess of thirty (30) days shall 
be forfeited unless the town manager authorizes an exception to this requirement.  Any exception 
shall be in writing and shall expire at the next measurement date, unless again extended in writing 
by the town manager. 

 



(5) The entire system will be based on the employee's anniversary date rather than calendar year. On 
the anniversary date in which the employee progresses to a new, higher rate (on anniversary year 
numbers 6, 14, and 20) he/she will begin accruing vacation at the new, higher rate, which may be 
used as accrued.  

 
(6) Accrued vacation leave shall be paid to an employee upon separation from service, or to his/her 

beneficiary or estate upon death. 
 

(7) Computation will be made by decimals, rounded to three (3) points, i.e., 1.346 hours to 5.833 
hours, and shall be calculated as of the last day of each pay week. 
 

(8) The town manager may exceptions as provided in sections (3) and (4) above when the manager 
determines it is in the best interest of the town.  

 



o:\word\ordinances\code supplement 27 starting june 2014\chapter 12 vacation policy 2-2015.docx 

Proposed Ordinance Amendments 

to Personnel Policy Regarding Vacation Time 

 

Drafted – 01/29/2015 

Public Hearing – 

Adopted –  

Effective –  

 

 Be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Brunswick, Maine, that Chapter 12, 

Articles VIII, the Municipal Code of Ordinances, Town of Brunswick, Maine, is amended by 

adding the underlined language and removing the strike-out language as follows: 
 

Sec. 12-81. - Vacation.  

 

(a)  Regular full-time employees. Each regular full-time employee shall be awarded annual vacation 

time with pay. Requests for leave must be approved by the employee's supervisor who shall take 

into consideration adequate staffing requirements. In accordance with the employee's current term 

of continuous employment based upon the standard work weeks depicted below, vacation shall be 

awarded as follows:  

 

Avg. hours worked per week 20 35 37.5 40 

For years 1—5, accrue at this rate: 

(2 wks/yr) 

    

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) .769 1.346 1.442 1.538 

For years 6—13 accrue at this rate: 

(3 wks/yr) 

    

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.154 2.019 2.163 2.308 

For years 14—19 accrue at this rate: 

(4 wks/yr) 

    

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.538 2.692 2.885 3.077 

For years 20+, accrue at this rate: 

(5 wks/yr) 

    

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.923 3.365 3.606 3.846 

 

(1)  If a holiday falls within the employee's vacation period, the employee will not be charged 

vacation for such holiday.   

 

(2) Employees will be eligible to use any accrued vacation time as earned, subject to the approval of 

the supervisor or department head.  Once an employee’s approved vacation time has commenced, 

no other paid leave time may be substituted for the approved vacation time. 

 



o:\word\ordinances\code supplement 27 starting june 2014\chapter 12 vacation policy 2-2015.docx 

(3) No employee shall be entitled to work their vacation with pay, except in case of emergency 

conditions.  receive both their normal pay and vacation pay for the same days actually worked 

unless authorized in writing by the town manager. 

 

(4) Employees, regardless of length of service, may accrue  carry a balance of up to thirty (30) days 

of vacation leave, measured annually each June 30. If an employee accumulates more than thirty 

(30) days vacation, he/she will lose all the time in excess of thirty (30) days  Any balance in 

excess of thirty (30) days shall be forfeited unless.  Due to unusual circumstances, the  the town 

manager may authorizes an exception to this requirement.  Any exception shall be in writing and 

shall expire at the next measurement date, unless again extended in writing by the town manager. 

 

(5) The entire system will be based on the employee's anniversary date rather than calendar year. On 

the anniversary date in which the employee progresses to a new, higher rate (on anniversary year 

numbers 6, 14, and 20) he/she will begin accruing vacation at the new, higher rate, which may be 

used as accrued.  

 

(6) Accrued vacation leave shall be paid to an employee upon separation from service, or to his/her 

beneficiary or estate upon death. 

 

(7) Computation will be made by decimals, rounded to three (3) points, i.e., 1.346 hours to 5.833 

hours, and shall be calculated as of the last day of each pay period. 

 

(8) The town manager may make exceptions as set forth in sections (3) and (4) above only when the 

town manager determines it is in the best interest of the Town. 

 

 

 

Adopted by the Brunswick Town Council at their Regular Meeting held on _____.  It will 

become effective thirty days after adoption.  

 

Attest: ________________________  

  Town Clerk 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 17 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: February 17, 2015 

TO: Town Council 

FROM: Steve Walker, Councilor 

RE: Mare Brook Watershed Assessment – Letter of Interest 

Issue Background: 

Mare Brook drains approximately 3,700 acres or 5.7 square miles of Brunswick before it outlets to the 
tidal marshes and mudflats of Harpswell Cove at the southern end of Brunswick Landing.  The majority 
of Brunswick’s growth area, a large portion of our existing urban core, Bowdoin College, and Brunswick 
Landing occur within this watershed that at one time supported native brook trout, and continues to 
influence the viability of a significant shellfish resource in Harpswell Cove. 

Since 2002, Mare Brook has failed to meet Class B water quality standards as defined by the Maine 
Department of Environmental Protection (MDEP).  As a result, Mare Brook has been designated as an 
impaired waterbody, or urban impaired stream.  In 2012, MDEP issued a Total Maximum Daily Load 
Assessment for Mare Brook (attached).  This assessment identifies stormwater runoff from impervious 
surfaces as the largest source of pollution.   At the time, the Mare Brook watershed had an impervious 
surface area of 21%.  The MDEP found that in order to meet Class B aquatic life standards, the Mare 
Brook watershed would require changes necessary to have stormwater runoff performance of a 
watershed with 8% impervious coverage.  MDEP recommends a comprehensive watershed 
management plan to better document issues on a subcatchment area basis, identify areas for 
restoration/improvement, and prioritize actions for future investment. 

Previous Town Action: 

In 2009, the Town of Brunswick drafted a proposal to MDEP for funding through the American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act to fund a Mare Brook Watershed Assessment (attached).  The purpose of the 
project was to: 1) create a solid background of essential biological, geomorphic and stormwater 
infrastructure information to aid future decision making; 2) develop a compensation fee utilization plan 
for future development in the watershed consistent with pending EPA/MDEP requirements; and 3) 
recommend and implement stormwater management techniques for the watershed. 

At the time, the town hoped to get this process underway to best inform the former base 
redevelopment planning efforts and to inform Bowdoin College’s use of early conveyance property 
(both Bowdoin and MRRA were listed as proposal partners).  Due to steep competition for limited 
funding, the town’s proposal was not funded.  

Recent Activities: 

During the past couple of weeks, Councilor Walker has been in contact with MDEP staff regarding the 
anticipated 2015 availability of funding to complete a watershed plan for Mare Brook.  MDEP is very 
interested in working within the Mare Brook watershed and hopes to kick off field studies (using 
Department funds) this spring.  Brunswick will then be asked to participate in a grant process this 
summer with the potential of securing funds to complete a 2-year watershed planning process.  



If the town decides to pursue this newly available funding, completion of the watershed management 
plan will likely cost between $80,000 and $90,000 over a period of 18 months to 2 years.  The required 
cash and in-kind match commitment from the town would likely total $55,000 over the two year period.  
The town will pursue additional grant funding sources to minimize any direct contributions of town 
funds.  Two field seasons will be required to complete this work.  

The watershed management assessment and planning project would include: 

Phase I (Summer/Fall of 2015 if possible): Data gathering and watershed evaluation to identify 
problems: Stressor analysis including a professional geomorphic survey, stream corridor and habitat 
survey, water quality monitoring (much of it to be conducted by Maine DEP), formation of a technical 
advisory committee (TAC) including landowners.   

Phase II (2016): Action plan development:  (With TAC involvement) complete stormwater retrofit survey 
to determine structural fixes, evaluate ordinances & zoning, develop action plan, identify future funding 
sources, write watershed plan. 

There are significant benefits for the town, Bowdoin, and MRRA in completing this plan.  Once the plan 
is completed, the town will be eligible for considerable funding to address plan priorities.  Additionally, 
with a completed plan, the town will likely have greater flexibility in meeting pending federal National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System requirements now in place for 30 Maine communities including 
nearby towns Freeport and Lisbon, Lewiston and Auburn.  Topsham is currently working on a plan for 
urban impaired streams associated with the Topsham Fair Mall. 

Requested Action: 

At this time, the Council is being asked to submit a letter to MDEP expressing our interest in identifying 
funding for a watershed plan.  MDEP is willing to begin field work for the project this spring using 
Department funding with the assurance that the town has an interest in pursuing formal grant 
opportunities in the summer of 2015.  Submitting a letter at this time does not commit the town to a 
match requirement, or to filing any specific grant application.  Those actions would come before the 
Council for a subsequent vote later this summer. 






































	ca a yes
	ca a February 9 2015 min
	ca b yes
	ca b st john_20150217125417
	mr a on line only
	mr b yes
	mr b article
	mr c no
	mr d yes
	mr e LettertoPartiesRegardingSiteVisitandPre-filedTestimony
	15 yes
	15 and 16 February 23 2015 PH harbor & personnel
	15 1_28 RCWC_TC_LTR
	15 Chapter 11 Article 1 Final 1.28.15
	15 Attorney MEMORANDUM --  RCWC Harbor Ordinance Final
	16 yes
	16 Memo Vacation Policy 012715
	16 Chapter 12 Vacation Policy 2-2015
	17 All.pdf
	17 yes
	17 Mare Brook memo_021715
	17 Mare_ARRA2009
	17 Mare_TMDL


